SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 8, 2016
10: 10 a. m

10: 10: 12 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Kelly called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 10:10 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Bill Trenblay, Board President, KFSK Comunity Radi o,
Petersburg; Christine Niem, Self, Juneau.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jenell e Everett, Self, Barrow, Chuck Herman, Self, Bethel;
Lori Gregory, KUCB, Unalaska; Bob Metcalf, University of
Al aska Fairbanks, Nome; Shauna Rudio, KUBC, Unal aska; Ann
Capela, Manager, City of Bethel, Bethel; Mk Springer,
Self, Bethel; Sue Steinacher, KUAC, None; Nelson Wl Kker,
Cty of Kiana, Kiana;, Brad Reich, Northwest Arctic Borough,
Ki ana; Mary Nanuwak, Self, Bethel; Geoff Carol, Self,
Barrow, Jeff Seifert, General Manager, KBRW Barrow, Bryant
Hammond, City Cderk, None; Donna Dennis, Self, Tok; Helen
A son, Self, Tok; Sharon Dunkin, Self, Tok; Betty Denny,
Self, Tok; Mchael Jeffery, Self, Barrow, Bob Harcharek,
President, Al aska Minicipal League, Barrow, GCeorge Koul us,
Sel f, Tok; Ri chard Benevill e Mayor , None; Erin
Hol I i ngsworth, Self, Barrow, Raynond Atos, Self, Barrow,



M ke Shults, Self, Barrow, Lee Sherwood, Self, Tok; denn
W ki nson, Self, Tok; Shawn Arnold, Superintendent, None
Public Schools, None; David Mrtin, Gty of Ketchikan,
Ket chi kan; G nger Fortin, Self, Ketchikan; Mary Deihl,
Sel f, Ketchikan; Jeff Jabusch, Borough Manager, W angell

City and Borough, Wangell; Christie Jam eson, President,
Wangell Chanber of Comerce, Wangell; Susan Stevens,
Sel f, W angel | ; Al eisha Ml en, Sel f, W angel | ; Mar k
Jensen, Mayor , Pet ersburg Bor ough, Pet er sbur g; Julie

Hursey, Self, Petersburg; Craig O son, Self, Petersburg;
Tom Abbbott, Self, Petersburg; Andy Donato, Division
Manager, KPU Electric, Ketchikan; Melvin Charles, Self,
Ket chi kan; Kathleen Light, Executive Director, Ketchikan
Area Arts and Humanities Council, Ketchikan; Deb Turnbull,
Sel f, Ketchikan; Karen Hofstad, Self, Petersburg; Joe
Stratman, Self, Petersburg; Sunny Rice, Self, Petersburg;
Leo Luczak, Self, Petersburg; Christine Jenkins, Self,
Wangell; Patrick Mayer, Superintendent, Wangell Public
School District, W angel | ; Mar gar et Cl oud, Sel f,
Ket chi kan; Sheila MIller, Volunteer, KRBD Radi o, Ketchikan;
Denni s Mann, Sel f, Ket chi kan; Janal ee  Gage, Sel f,
Ket chi kan; Janice Walker, Self, Ketchikan; David Byrne,
Sel f, Pet er sbur g; Erica Kludt-Painter, Superi nt endent ,
Pet ersburg School District, Petersburg; John Havrilek,
Pet ersburg Chanber of Commerce, Petersburg; Ted Howard,
Board Menber, KCAW Sitka; Rich McCOear, Self, Sitka; John
Dull, Self, Sitka; Mark Gorman, Cty Admnistrator, Gty
and Borough of Sitka, Sitka; Lauren Bell, Self, Sitka;

Mary Wegner, Superintendent, Sitka School District, Sitka;
Sandi Koval, Self, Sitka; Jon Stavig, CFO, Gty of Cordova,
Cordova; Brent Davis, Self, Cordova; Getchen Carke, Self,
Sitka; John Mirray, Self, Sitka; Denny Wathers, Self,
Cordova; John Anderson, KCHU, Valdez; Shane Kinberlin,
Self, Valdez; CGuy Bergstrom Self, Valdez; Terry Sinmons,
Sel f, Valdez; Robert Berceli, Self, Cordova; Karen Allred,
Vol unteer, KCHU, Valdez; Lee Hart, Levitation 49, Valdez;
Joan Kautzer, Board Menber, KFSK, Kupreanof; John Bolling,
Cty of Craig, Craig; Carl Berger, Self, Bethel; den
Marunde, Northway Community, Northway; Julia Phelan, Self,
Delta Junction; Jon FErickson, City WManager, City of
Yakutat; Steve Al exander, Self, EIfin Cove; Todd Richards,
Self, Elfin Cove; Margaret Friedenauer, Self, Haines; Anne
Hanssen, Self, Haines; John Lanont, Self, Al akanuk; Al bert
Ni gneul ook, Self, Shishmaref; Elsie Vent, Huslia City
Council, Huslia; Janmes Squyres, Self, Rural Deltana; Fred
Patterson, Self, Chiniak; Jeff Wddows, Self, Yakutat;
Chris Wddows, Self, Yakutat; Mary Amaktoik, Self, Eim

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 03/08/16 10:10 A M



Deborah Potter, Self, Skagway; Jennifer Thuss, Self,
Skagway; Mel anie Lesh, Self, Gustavus; Dustin Craney, Self,
Hai nes.

SUMVARY
SB 139 APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS

SB 139 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

SB 140 APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

SB 140 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for
further consideration.

#sb139
#sb140
SENATE BILL NO 139

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and
| oan program expenses of state governnment and for

certain progr ans, capitali zing f unds, maki ng
reappropriations, making supplenental appropriations,
and making appropriations under art. |X, sec. 17(c),

Constitution of the State of Al aska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for
an effective date."

SENATE BI LL NO. 140

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and
capi tal expenses of t he state's i nt egrated
conprehensi ve nental health program and providing for
an effective date."

10: 10: 23 AM

Co-Chair Kelly relayed that he would hand the gavel to Co-
Chai r MacKi nnon to continue the neeting.

APUBLI C TESTI MONY: BETHEL, NOMVE, KOTZEBUE, UNALASKA

10:11: 01 AM

CHUCK HERMAN, SELF, BETHEL (via teleconference), urged the
commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 03/08/16 10:10 A M



spoke to the inmportance of public radio to the comrunity.
He explained the critical nature of the service to the
rural comunity. He believed KYUK was  particularly
i mportant for community engagenent; the station aired | ocal
governnent neetings, news, and energency response. He
stressed that the station helped people with all sorts of
things including finding jobs. He noted that the comunity
had little internet access.

10: 13: 38 AM

LORI GREGORY, KUCB, UNALASKA (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting

She shared that she had lived in Unal aska since the 1970s.
She relayed that the radio station provided news and other
i nportant  programm ng. She relayed that the fishing
industry relied on public radio for weather and road
conditions and subsistence fishery closures. Cuts from the
prior year had reduced the radio staff to one. She relayed
that at the current staffing level the station was already
struggling. She stressed that the station was a crucial
service that provided enmergency information to the |ocal
communities; with further cuts the station would be unable
to provide the service. She asked the committee to preserve
as nmuch fundi ng as possi ble for public broadcasting.

10:17: 03 AM

BOB METCALF, UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA FAIRBANKS, NOVE (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for the
University. He spoke in support of the many organizations
and partners that worked to collaborate with the Northwest
canpus. He asked the commttee to support K-12 education

He shared that the |l|ocal school districts had engaged
openly with communities, Alaska Native organi zations, and
busi ness partners as part of the Norton Sound Education
Wor kgroup, which was a region-wide effort to inprove
educational achievenment. He requested support for the
Depart ment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent funds for the
Nort hwestern Al aska Career and Technical Center (NACTEC).
He supported the Nome youth facility, behavioral health
services, and the Cooperative Extension. He strongly
supported Senator QO son's efforts on continuing Al aska
Native | anguages. He thanked the conmttee for its tine.

10:19: 33 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 03/08/16 10:10 A M



SHAUNA RUDI O, KUBC, UNALASKA (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting

She understood that the legislature had a difficult
situation related to the budget. She echoed testinony from
Ms. Gregory related to the community's dependence on the
local public radio station (KUCB). She relayed that the
station was the voice of Unalaska; it kept the comunity
connected with news, energency services, and |ocal and
state news. She communi cated that |ocal reporters provided
news reports that were broadcast state and nati onw de. She
detail ed that one of her high school students was using the
radio station to broadcast news reports. She believed the
service was very inportant for a denocratic society.

10: 22: 33 AM

ANN  CAPELA, MANAGER, aTYy OF BETHEL, BETHEL (via
t el econf erence), provi ded suggesti ons on how state
government coul d enable |ocal governnments to nake their own
revenue. One of the larger issues was related to why sales
tax could not be inposed on internet sales in Al aska. She
noted that there were nmany states that allowed internet
sales tax. She believed the |egislature should take a hard
|l ook at the option. She relayed that it was a comon
practice nationwide to enable the |ocal governnents to
negotiate franchise fees with the cable conpany providers,
but it was prohibited in Al aska. She could not figure out
why the state would protect giant providers of cable. She
stated that the fees could bring $150,000 to $200,000 into
| ocal communities. She opposed cutting tax revenue to | ocal
governnments. She hoped the commttee would consider how to
allow l|ocal governnments to make noney and adding costs.
Particularly, in the Public Enployees' Retirement System
(PERS) area. She inplored the conmttee to untie the hands
of | ocal governnent.

10: 26: 12 AM

MARK SPRI NGER, SELF, BETHEL (via tel econference), urged the
committee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He
did not believe it was wise to zero out funding for the
service. He discussed that the service had been a mgjor
ef fort by conmunities; the service was managed by
hardworking professionals. He supported the governor's
proposed budget that included a 27 percent cut to the
service. He stated that the rural econony could not support

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 03/08/16 10:10 A M



commercial radio. He noted that cutting the service at 100
percent would be extraordinarily unfair to rural Al aska.

10: 28: 44 AM

SUE STEI NACHER, KUAC, NOVE (via teleconference), spoke in
strong opposition to cuts to behavioral health services.
She was deeply concerned for rural Al aska. She stressed
that the community was dying due to high costs of shipping
to the region. She spoke to high fuel costs, alcohol
probl ens, and very few resources. She spoke to generational
trauma, substance abuse, and famly violence. She urged the
committee to restore funding for public broadcasting. She
detailed that she would not have known about the current
public testinony w thout public radio. She pointed to the
high cost of internet services that prevented residents
from paying for the service. She resented receiving
expensive docunents telling her how the state was in a
financial crisis and how education and other critical
services were at risk if the Permanent Fund D vidend system
was not restructured. She stated that to go after the PFD
woul d proportionately hurt the poor and rural Al aska far
nore than the wealthy. She supported a statew de incone
tax. She enphasized that sales taxes hurt the poor far
nore. She stressed that the state could not cut its way to
prosperity. She could accept some restructuring of the
Permanent Fund especially if savings were invested in
af f ordabl e housi ng, education, and childcare in the poorest
sectors of the state or if it was done on a needs basis.

10: 33: 10 AM

NELSON WALKER, CITY OF KIANA, KIANA (via teleconference),
remarked that the state's smaller comunities wused a
significant anount of state funds. One of the comunity's
| argest issues was related to insurance for its enployees,
bui |l di ngs, and equipnment. He stated that insurance costs
had dramatically increased in recent years. He shared that
the comunity used a lot of equipnent on road maintenance
and its sewer systenms were over 20 years old. He detailed
that the community was faced with replacing things wth
parts that were already broken. He pointed to issues
related to the community's health and safety. There had
recently been a large fuel spill in the community, which it
was working to clean up

10: 34: 55 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 03/08/16 10:10 A M



BRAD REI CH, NORTHWEST  ARCTIC  BOROUGH, KIANA (via
tel econference), spoke to the inportance of revenue sharing
for the borough. The borough tried to provide the best
public safety as possible, but it was in need of additional
public safety officers to provide sufficient service. He
spoke to the high costs of fuel in the region. Revenue
sharing helped to keep the conmmunities noving. He detail ed
the costs between villages. He asked the commttee to
mai ntai n revenue sharing for rural comunities.

10: 37: 47 AM

MARY NANUWAK, SELF, BETHEL (via teleconference), shared
that she had listened to a taped neeting between David
Gottstein and David Cuddy from a bank in Anchorage; she
stated that the neeting was very informative. She relayed
that the individuals had talked about issues that the
Senate had not yet discussed. She urged the Al aska Mental
Health Trust Authority (AMHTA) to stop m susing noney. She
asked for the funds to be used for the appropriate things.
She shared that she had sought help wth housing in
Anchorage from AVHTA and had been told by the authority to
go to the Alaska Psychiatric Institute, which she believed
was i nappropriate. She stated that no matter who a person
was, their needs were |ike everyone else's. She thanked the
conmittee for its tine.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon noted the commttee would reconvene at
11:15 a.m or earlier if additional nmenbers of the public
were ready to testify.

10: 41: 55 AM
AT EASE

10: 48: 15 AM
RECONVENED

10: 49: 41 AM

CGECFF CAROL, SELF, BARROW (via teleconference), spoke to
the need to increasing incone and reducing expenditures. He
supported restructuring of the Permanent Fund to be of
further use to the state. Additionally, he supported a
statewi de incone tax. He understood that cuts were needed,
but he urged the conmittee from cutting too deeply. He
strongly supported a restoration of funding for public

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 03/08/16 10:10 A M



broadcasting. He spoke to the inportant prograns provided
by the service including news, energency broadcasting, and
other. He relayed that there was great support provided to
the station by the community, but it was not sufficient to
run the station

Senator (O son asked M. Carol to discuss the |loca
contributions to radio. M. Carol replied that the
comunity raised $130,000 per year for the public radio
station.

10: 53: 29 AM

JEFF SEl FERT, GENERAL MANAGER, KBRW BARROW (via
tel econference), urged the commttee to restore funding for
public broadcasting. Shared that the station had survived a
20 percent cut from the |ast session. He believed 100
percent cuts to public broadcasting were not fair. He
di scussed that the Al aska Public Broadcasting Network was
vitally inportant to keeping local stations on track; the
cuts would elimnate the service. He stressed that the

station was a vital link to villages and many tinmes it was
the only way to get information to the commnities. He
stated that for life, safety, and health, the service was

critical. He hoped the conmttee would restore funding.

Senator O son asked about the extent of the range of the
radi o station.

M. Seifert replied that the station's transmt power was
10,000 watts. He had been told that the station had been
heard as far as Finland. There were public broadcasting
transmtters in all of the region's village communities,
which were in dire need of repair. He detailed that the
station's entire infrastructure was aging. He discussed
that costs kept rising. He stressed the inportance of
publ i ¢ broadcasting in the region.

10: 58: 33 AM

M. Seifert noted that others from public broadcasting were
comng to testify.

Co-Chair WMacKi nnon noted that the commttee would hear the
testi nony when they arrived.

10: 59: 23 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 03/08/16 10:10 A M



AT EASE

11: 01: 11 AM
RECONVENED

BRYANT HAMMOND, CITY CLERK, NOVE (via teleconference),
asked the conmttee to ensure that the None Youth Facility
did not close. He spoke to spreading cuts to ensure the
facility remai ned open. He stressed that there was not nuch
"fat" to cut. He hoped for the return of increased oil
prices, but he was not holding his breath. He detail ed that
it was time to diversify the state's revenue. He did not
believe the state adequately taxed its residents. He
advocated for the governnent to recognize that change was
needed. He endorsed a budget that increased revenues rather
t han i ncreasing cuts.

APUBLI C TESTI MONY: BARROW TOK, DELTA JUNCTI ON

11: 04: 02 AM

DONNA DENNI'S, SELF, TOK (via teleconference), spoke in
support of funds for the Tok Senior Center. She urged the
conmittee to not cut funds for senior services that
i ncluded transportation and physical therapy. The program
encouraged seniors to engage with other comunity nenbers.
She spoke to the overwhel m ng nunber of seniors in need

She detailed that the center had been told that the
transportation service would not be available in April and
May; one of its staff would be required to take tine off
due to cuts. She urged the commttee to strongly consider
the cuts. She rem nded the commttee nenbers that they too
woul d beconme seniors at sone point. She thanked the
commttee for its tine.

11: 07: 12 AM

HELEN OLSON, SELF, TOK (via teleconference), urged support
of funding for senior services and the Tok Senior Center.
She discussed the Meals on \Weels service for the
committee. She shared information the program provided.
Sonme of the elders could not read or wite; the staff went
above and beyond for <caring for the recipients. She
inplored the commttee to continue to support the service.

11:10: 07 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 03/08/16 10:10 A M



SHARON DUNKIN, SELF, TOK (via teleconference), shared that
she is currently 81 years of age. She shared that she had
an old vehicle that was currently in the shop and needed a
new starter and rebuilt engine. She discussed her |ow
i ncone, which prevented her from paying for the repairs.
She relayed that she only burned wood and understood that
heating would be cut; her only heat source was a wood
stove. She spoke to the high cost of groceries in the
comunity.

11:11: 49 AM

BETTY DENNY, SELF, TOK (via teleconference), relayed that
she had worked for the Upper Tanana Devel opnent Cor poration
for the past 38 years, which received Title 3 grants. She
detailed that the corporation served 16 comunities
di scussed a transportation service provided in the region.
She shared that the service provided neal sites in seven of
the communities. Additionally, the corporation provided bus
transportation for seniors between sone of the areas. She
relayed that the buses were aging and upkeep costs were
high. She noted that the agency had been forced to |ay
staff off due to budget cuts. She was opposed to cuts to
seni or prograns.

11:13: 27 AM

M CHAEL  JEFFERY, SELF, BARROW (via teleconference),
di scussed his prior enploynent and work as a superior court
j udge. He supported conti nued fundi ng for public
broadcasting. He supported continued funding for Adult
Medi caid dental program nental health grants, and the
seni or comunity based program

11:15:49 AM

BOB HARCHAREK, PRESI DENT, ALASKA MJUNI Cl PAL LEAGUE, BARROW
(via teleconference), spoke in favor of namintaining the
revenue sharing program He believed the loss of the
program would result in sone placing having to close their

doors. He suggested that three sets of keys would be nade,

sending one to the Senate President, one to the Speaker of

t he House, and one to the governor. He al so spoke about the
unfunded liability of PERS

11:19:51 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 03/08/16 10:10 A M



GECRCGE KOULUS, SELF, TOK (via teleconference), wurged
support of funding for senior services. He believed cutting
senior benefits and centers was the wong thing to do. He
expl ained that many seniors depended on the check they
recei ved. He spoke against cutting heat assistance and food
stanps. He shared that he tried to work in the sunmmer as
much as possible to avoid being dependent on the services.
H s benefits had already been cut by $225 per nonth, which
was difficult. He was a 74 year-old and spoke of living off
of the land. He stated that some seniors depended on the
servi ce.

11:21:25 AM

RI CHARD BENEVI LLE  NMAYOR, NOVE (via t el econf erence),
testified against cuts to the Nome Youth Facility. He
detailed that there were troubled youth in the region and
closing the youth facility would be sad. He also spoke in
favor of revenue sharing. He stressed that the comunity
depended on revenue sharing. He understood that the
| egislature and the governor were faced wth incredibly
difficult decisions. He asked that the commttee nenbers to
reconsi der funding the youth facility.

11: 23: 52 AM

ERIN HOLLI NGSWORTH, SELF, BARROW (via teleconference),

testified in favor of the Online with Libraries program
that provided increased bandwidth to the 97 rural libraries
t hroughout the state. She detailed that the program
provi ded educational and econom c opportunities that would
not otherwi se be available to people on the North Sl ope.

She provided exanples of how the program had hel ped
students to earn degrees. She opined that the program
helped to encourage | earning. She talked about the
opportunities that online technology offered. She also
supported early learning prograns. Additionally, she urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting

She thanked the commttee for its tine.

Senator O son asked M. Hollingsworth to expand on the
services provided by the library in Barrow. He referred to
out reach progr ams provi ded by t he library. MVs.
Hol I i ngsworth responded that she provided public services
including story tinmes with a focus on early literacy and
the Imagination Library program The |ibrary also provided
video conferencing through the OA network, which allowed

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 03/08/16 10:10 A M



the library to bring authors into the state from the Lower
48, shari ng cul tural pr ogranmm ng, conducti ng j ob
interviews, and other. The library had picked up the slack
for many of the social welfare services. She also hel ped
people fill out paperwork and their PFD applications.

11:28: 50 AM

RAYMOND ATCS, SELF, BARROW (via teleconference), was a
resident of Barrow for 33 years. He urged the conmttee to
restore funding for public broadcasting. He spoke to the
importance of the service that provided information on
weat her, which was vital information for the region's
hunters. He opined that public radio was critical for
provi di ng energency information.

11: 30: 15 AM

M KE SHULTS, SELF, BARROW (via teleconference), urged the
commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He
advocated for additional funding for the service. He
di scussed that currently the weather was very wi ndy; it was
also the time of year that whaling crews were starting to
cut trails on the ice, which was a perfect exanple of the
need for public radio. He stressed that wthout the radio
announci ng the upcomng storm there would be as nmany as 48
crews on the ice who would be stuck on the ice when the
storm hit. He stressed that it was a dangerous situation

He enphasized that it was public radio was vitally
inmportant to the conmunity.

11:31: 57 AM

JENELLE EVERETT, SELF, BARROW (via tel econference), spoke
in support of the restoration of funds to public radio. She
mentioned that when she first started working at the
station she had not realized the inportance of public radio
in terns of safety for community nenbers. She stressed the
unpredi ctable nature of the weather in the region and the
i nportance of public broadcasting, which provided reports
on the weather. She relayed that all residents did not have
access to a conputer or television, which neant they did
not have access to events in the region and the state.
Messages sent between comunities kept residents inforned.
She detailed that hunters needed to be inforned of the
weat her for safety reasons. She urged the commttee to
continue support of public broadcasting.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 03/08/16 10:10 A M



11:33: 47 AM

LEE SHERWOOD, SELF, TOK (via teleconference), shared that
he had retired in Tok because there were no property taxes.
He reviewed his expenditures and his limted inconme. He
urged support of funding for senior services because of his
personal need. He detailed that he needed free |lunches at
the senior center and he wused the heating assistance
program for oil. He stated that he needed the PFD to help
himout in the fall. He stressed that if the budget reduced
senior services it would increase suffering for individuals
i ke hinself.

11:35: 41 AM

GLENN W LKI NSON, SELF, TOK (via teleconference), indicated
that he and his wife retired in Tok. He spoke of the
expense of his utilities. He spoke in favor of nmaintaining
the PFD, he did not want to see it reduced. He shared that
he and his wife had both gone back to work in Tok. He
provi ded personal information about his struggles.

11:38:10 AM

SHAWN ARNOLD, SUPERI NTENDENT, NOVE PUBLIC SCHOOLS, NOVE
(via teleconference), spoke in favor of full funding for
broadband in schools early childhood education. He stressed
that many of the cuts to the services were significant
whi ch woul d inpact staffing. He tal ked about the inportance
of being able to plan ahead related to staffing. If the
goal was to determne innovative and collaborative
solutions for education, the funding needed to be
avai |l abl e.

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked M. Arnold if his school had
gqualified for an early learning grant from the Departnent
of Education and Early Devel opnent, and if so, she wondered
about the anount.

M. Arnold replied in the affirmative. The None School
District had been one of the initial recipients of the
grant in 2012; the district had received $264, 000 per year.
He detailed that the district had received about one-
gquarter of the funding each year, which helped the district
provide three full-tinme certified teachers to the | ocal
Head Start and one for Pre-K

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 03/08/16 10:10 A M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked for verification that the district
had used the grant funding to fund the Head Start Program

M. Arnold replied that the district had collaborated wth
Head Start as part of the grant and it had provided two
teachers from the school district to the Head Start
program She asked for verification that the district had
used one-quarter of the funds. She asked if $264,000 was
the total amount the district had received over the four
year - peri od.

M. Arnold clarified that it was about one-quarter of the
anount that was allotted every year within the grant. He
furthered that Nome Public Schools was a recipient of about
one-quarter of the funds each year.

Co-Chair MacKinnon indicated that the commttee would
reconvene in 5 m nutes.

11:42:24 AM
AT EASE

11:46: 51 AM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair MacKinnon indicated that currently there was no
one online to testify. She reviewed the agenda for the
remai nder of the day and noted the commttee would
reconvene at 12:55 p. m

11:48:28 AM
AT EASE

1: 03: 34 PM
RECONVENED

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon handed the gavel to Co-Chair Kelly.

APUBLI C TESTI MONY: KETCHI KAN, WRANGELL, PETERSBURG

1: 04: 15 PM

BILL TREMBLAY, BOARD PRESIDENT, KFSK COVMUN TY RADI Q
PETERSBURG, urged the conmttee to restore funding for
publ i c broadcasting. He understood the current state budget
situation, but felt that a 100 percent reduction would put

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 03/08/16 10:10 A M



his station out of business within two years. He remarked
that the federal grants required a mnimum of $// He
stressed that there was a mninum | evel of enploynent that
must be net in order to neet the federal matching grant. He
remarked that the current public radio system was an
effective way of comuni cating energency and safety
i nformati on. He spoke against the House proposed investnent
in alternative nethods of comunication. He provided
witten testinony.

Co-Chair Kelly stated that the witten testinony would be
distributed to the conmttee.

1: 07: 26 PM

DAVI D MARTI N, CTY OF KETCHI KAN, KETCHI KAN (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for
revenue sharing. He remarked that the City of Ketchi kan had
recei ved an average of $483,000 in revenue. He shared that
revenue sharing funding approximately 2.4 percent of city's
general fund annual budget. He stated that the city would
stand to |ose $158,457, and may need to raise its nmil rate
by two-tenths of a ml| to cover the projected loss, if the
governor's proposed budget was not approved. The city's
econony had becone nore seasonal as a result of the
shutdown of the tinmber industry in Southeast Al aska. He
stressed that revenue sharing had been a reliable and
consi stent source of revenue to help pay for the operations
of general governnent.

1: 10: 08 PM

G NGER  FORTI N, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for Southeast Al aska
| ndependent Living (SAIL), and other simlar nonprofits.
She urged support of funding for all senior services. She
also testified in support of funding the Al aska Marine
H ghway, and hoped that the Kennecott would provide further
servi ce.

1:11: 32 PM

MARY DEI HL, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference), testified
in support of funding the Al aska Marine H ghway. She shared
that it was difficult to get car space on cross-gulf
service on the ferry. She encouraged nore cross-gulf ferry
servi ce.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 03/08/16 10:10 A M



1:12: 23 PM

JEFF JABUSCH, BOROUGH MANAGER, WRANGELL CITY AND BOROUGH
WRANGELL (via teleconference), testified in support of
funding for revenue sharing. He stated that the funding
woul d provide support for the smaller conmunities. He
remarked that the property tax exenption law nmade it
difficult to fund services when 70 percent of the tax
exenptions were directed at seniors. He remarked that nany
times the exenptions were directed at the wealthier in
communities. He urged the conmttee to utilize a state
sales tax. He also urged the commttee to restore funding
for public broadcasting. He stressed that the public radio
was the only form of broadcasting in Wangell.

1:14: 52 PM

CHRI STI E JAM ESON, PRESI DENT, WRANGELL CHAMBER OF COMVERCE
WRANGELL (via teleconference), urged the commttee to
restore funding for public broadcasting. She shared that
the proposed 100 percent reduction would elimnate the
federal match for public radio. She stressed that the
elimnation of small stations in the state would elimnate
the possibility for access to state and worl d news.

1:16: 23 PM

SUSAN STEVENS, SELF, WRANCELL (via teleconference), urged
the conmmttee to restore funding for public broadcasting

She echoed Ms. Jameson's remarks. She spoke against the
tax exenption wthholding. She testified in support of
funding the Al aska Marine H ghway. She shared that the poor
comunities would be greatly affected by the elimnation of
ferry service.

1:17:58 PM

ALEI SHA MOLLEN, SELF, WRANGELL (via teleconference), urged
the committee to restore funding for public broadcasting

She echoed the previous testifiers related to the public
broadcasting funding. She shared that wthout the state
funding, the local radio station would be elimnmnated. She
shared that KSTK was Wangell's only source for state and
| ocal news. She encouraged the commttee to consider their
own news sources when determning whether to fund public

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 03/08/16 10:10 A M



radi o. She urged the comrmttee to provide the essential and
wort hwhil e funding to the public radio stations.

1: 20: 06 PM

MARK JENSEN, NMAYOR, PETERSBURG BOROUGH, PETERSBURG (Vi a
tel econference), testified in support of funding for
revenue sharing. He felt that SB 21 should be revisited in
order to balance the state's budget situation. He shared
that the Petersburg Borough had a |ower proposed bal anced
budget than in years prior. He would like to decrease the
muni ci pality contribution to Public Enployees' Retirenent
System (PERS). He al so spoke in support of full funding for
educati on.

1:22: 24 PM

JULI E HURSEY, SELF, PETERSBURG (via tel econference), urged
the committee to restore funding for public broadcasting

She felt that the elimnation of funding would cause the
radio to go out of business. She shared that the radi o had
recently provided information about an escape inmate, but
the radio was able to provide information about the safety
of children and citizens. She stressed that public radio
was a lifeline. She announced that there were many people
in Petersburg who did not have cell phones or internet.
Public radio was available to everyone regardless of their
ability to pay.

1:24:19 PM

CRAI G OLSON, SELF, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting
He encouraged the reinstatenment of the governor's proposed
budget related to public radio. He remarked that the public
radio provided tinmely safety information. He stressed that
the public radio station in Petersburg provided news and
information to nmany outlying comunities. He stressed that
the budget reduction would elimnate federal funding
avai l ability.

1: 26: 03 PM

TOM ABBBOIT, SELF, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), spoke
in support of capping the Permanent Fund D vidend, and
urged the commttee to utilize a state incone tax. He also
urged the commttee to restore funding for public

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 03/08/16 10:10 A M



broadcasting. He felt that the governor's proposed cut was
nore reasonable than the House proposed 100 percent cut. He
stressed that public radio provided access to |oca
Al askans to entertai nment, news, and conmunity infornmation.

1: 28: 24 PM

ANDY DONATO, DI VI SI ON MANAGER, KPU ELECTRI C, KETCHI KAN (vi a
tel econference), urged the conmttee to restore funding for
public broadcasting. He shared that there had been a
situation that had elimnated power for nost of Ketchikan.
He remarked that the public radio in Ketchikan was able to
announce the situation and encourage the community to | ower
their lights and heat to "skirt" the shortage to nake
adequate power repairs. He stressed the inportance of the
public radio station in Ketchikan.

1: 30: 20 PM

MELVI N CHARLES, SELF, KETCH KAN (via tel econference), urged
the conmttee to utilize a state inconme tax. He renarked
that the mpjority of state fishermen in Alaska were
nonresidents in Alaska. He felt that all of the enployed
nonresidents should pay taxes in Al aska. He remarked that
the tax would pay for education. He spoke in support of
reduci ng funding for food stanps. He felt that a person who
makes over $2000 should pay taxes. He did not feel that
seniors should pay taxes. He felt that there should be a
|arge tax on alcoholics. He remarked that he had many
addi ti onal commrents.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon handed the gavel to Senator Bishop.

1: 32: 50 PM

KATHLEEN LI GHT, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, KETCHI KAN AREA ARTS AND
HUVANI TI ES COUNCI L, KETCH KAN (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting.
She stated that the public radio provided a valuable
service in providing information. She stated that a 100
percent cut to public radio would cause a negative ripple
ef fect across the comunity.

1: 34:14 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 03/08/16 10:10 A M



DEB TURNBULL, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting
She understood that the commttee had a difficult budget
decision. She stated that the public radio in Ketchikan
provi ded service to many comunities surroundi ng Ketchikan.
She stressed that the budget cuts would cause a |oss of
jobs that would cause a |oss of service. She stressed that
the local public radio station provided various types of
information to the residents of Ketchikan.

1: 36: 16 PM

KAREN HOFSTAD, SELF, PETERSBURG (via tel econference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting.
She remarked that there were many safety issues that
required the information produced by public radio. She
understood that there should be funding for essential
services including public radi o comrunicati on.

1: 38: 23 PM

JOE STRATMAN, SELF, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), urged
the committee to restore funding for public broadcasting

He remarked that the rural comunities relied on public
radio for the sole source of news and information. He
shared that the public radio in Petersburg provided
i nformati on about a nmjor earthquake in 2013. He announced
that the public radio provided access to energency
information. He felt that a 100 percent cut to public radio
woul d be detrimental to the local station. He also urged
the commttee to utilize a state incone tax to support
public radi o funding.

1:40: 11 PM

SUNNY RICE, SELF, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), urged
the committee to restore funding for public broadcasting

She also testified 1in support of funding for the
University. She shared that the research in paralytic
shel | fish poisoning would be elimnated, and stressed that
the research was inportant to the safety of the citizens.
She urged the conmttee to utilize a state inconme tax, and
testified in support of using Permanent Fund ear ni ngs.

1:42:15 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 03/08/16 10:10 A M



LEO LUCZAK, SELF, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting
He supported the governor's proposed budget for public
broadcasting. He remarked that a 100 percent cut would
cause many of the rural stations to lose funding for their
own stations.

1:43: 44 PM

CHRI STINE JENKINS, SELF, WRANGELL (via teleconference),
supported the senior citizen tax exenption. She also urged
support of funding for senior services.

1:44: 31 PM

PATRI CK  MAYER, SUPERI NTENDENT, WRANGELL PUBLIC SCHOOL
DI STRI CT, WRANGELL (via teleconference), spoke in favor of
full funding for broadband in schools. He spoke in support
of the scheduled $50 .increase to the base student
allocation. He testified against the <cuts to travel,
personnel, and phones. He also supported enhanced revenue
neasur es.

1:46: 46 PM

MARGARET CLOUD, SELF, KETCHI KAN (via tel econference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting

She spoke in support of full funding for public television
and radio. She shared a personal story about her daughter.
She stated that her daughter was given the opportunity to
have a radi o show, and allowed her to grow and devel op. She
stressed that her son would watch valuable educational

programm ng on public television. She shared that her son
felt that he did not need to attend kindergarten, because
he felt that he was receiving adequate education from
public tel evision.

1:49: 17 PM

SHEI LA M LLER, VOLUNTEER, KRBD RADIO,  KETCH KAN (via
tel econference), urged the commttee to restore funding for
public broadcasting. She shared that she was able to access
state and national news and information through the Iocal
public radio station in Ketchikan. She stressed that she
recei ved nost of her information from public radio, because
she did not have internet or phone access in her hone.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 03/08/16 10:10 A M



1: 51: 05 PM

DENNI S MANN, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to utilize a state incone tax, rather than
accessing the Permanent Fund. He also urged support of
funding for senior services.

1:52: 13 PM

JANALEE GAGE, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference), shared
that she was a working disabled person. She renmarked that
she had seen the disregard of disabled citizens. She urged
the commttee to utilize a state inconme tax. She al so urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting.
She stressed that the public radio station provided news
and i nportant energency information.

1:54: 04 PM

JANI CE WALKER, SELF, KETCHI KAN (via tel econference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting

She remarked that there was no cable television, internet
access, or cell phone service in nmany of the rural
communities. The rural comunities often relied on the
| ocal public radio station to access needed community
information. She shared that the budget cut would lead to
the layoff of many public radio personnel. She stated that
the layoffs would result in decreased public content and
quality information. She felt that the cut would also
result in the loss of federal funding. She stressed that
the Ketchikan public radio was the source of energency
services in Ketchikan and the surrounding comunities. She
al so spoke in support of alternate revenue sources.

1: 57: 06 PM

DAVI D BYRNE, SELF, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting
He stressed that the radio provided local real tinme
information and news to the conmunity. He was opposed to
any further budget cuts to the radio.

1:58: 08 PM

ERI CA KLUDT- PAI NTER, SUPERI NTENDENT, PETERSBURG SCHOOL
DI STRICT, PETERSBURG (via teleconference), testified in
support of enhanced revenue neasures. She felt that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 03/08/16 10:10 A M



governor had provided a reasonable budget and revenue
proposal. She also urged the conmittee to utilize a state
inconme tax, and testified in support of using Permanent
Fund earnings. She also urged the conmittee to restore
funding for public broadcasting.

Senat or Bi shop handed the gavel to Co-Chair MacKi nnon

2: 00: 24 PM

JOHN HAVRI LEK, PETERSBURG CHAMBER OF COVWMERCE, PETERSBURG
(via teleconference), urged the comrittee to restore
funding for public broadcasting. He stated that the |oca

public radio had provided adequate information about an
escape inmate, and was able to keep the conmunity of
Pet er sburg safe.

2:01:32 PM
AT EASE

2:01:50 PM
RECONVENED

APUBLI C TESTI MONY: Sl TKA, CORDOVA, VALDEZ

2:02:13 PM

TED HOMRD, BQOARD MEMBER, KCAW SITKA (via tel econference),
urged the commttee to restore funding for public
broadcasting. He felt that the budget reduction would cause
a problem in educating children. He felt that the radio
station could not handl e any further budget cuts.

2: 03: 38 PM

RICH MCCLEAR, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), urged the
committee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He
stressed that the local public radio station could no
| onger provide the expensive news services. He stressed
that the state needed to know the activities of the state.

2:05:54 PM

JOHN DULL, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), testified
against all funding for education. He also testified
against funding for all senior citizens and public

broadcasting. He did not feel that the Medicaid funding

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 22 03/08/16 10:10 A M



should be in increnental. He encouraged the commttee to
make adequate budget decisions. He urged the conmittee to
utilize a substantial state inconme tax, and a state sales
t ax.

2:07: 48 PM

MARK GORMAN, CITY ADM NI STRATOR, CITY AND BOROUGH OF SI TKA,
SITKA (via teleconference), felt that noving too quickly in
the budget reductions would result in a recession. He
testified in support of funding for revenue sharing. He
al so spoke about the PERS contribution. He spoke in support
of the community sharing prograns.

2:09:49 PM

LAUREN BELL, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), urged the
committee to restore funding for public broadcasting. She
shared that she was 27-years-old, and had relied alnost
exclusively on public broadcasting for local, state, and
nati onal news. She stressed that she often depended on the
public radio for health, energency, and safety information.
She remarked that many people did not have access to
internet, and relied on the radio for all information. She
felt that the budget reduction would degrade the value of
Al aska comuni ti es.

2:11: 34 PM

MARY WEGNER, SUPERI NTENDENT, SITKA SCHOOL DI STRICT, SITKA
(via teleconference), spoke in support of funding Pre-K
through University. She also spoke in support of the
schedul ed $50 increase to the base student allocation. She
stressed that the funds allowed for a quality education for
students. She remarked that, wthout the funding, there
would be a drastic negative inpact on students and
comunities. She also testified in support of funding the
Al aska Marine H ghway. She opposed the proposed cut to
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED).

2:14:55 PM

SANDI KOVAL, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), urged
support of funding for senior services. She stressed that
many services provided dignity to the senior citizens of
the state. She stressed that the elders of the state were
pi oneers who contributed to the community. She felt that

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 23 03/08/16 10:10 A M



the cuts were devaluing the seniors. She stressed that
every senior services provided priceless human contact for
many citizens. She hoped that the state would continue to
val ue the existence of the state's senior popul ation.

2:17: 22 PM

JON  STAVI G CFQ, CTY OF CORDOVA, CORDOVA  (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding the Al aska
Marine H ghway. He remarked that there was a study that
showed that for every dollar spent on the ferry service,
the state saw a two dollar return in the econony. He felt
that the ferry reduction would see a reduction in economc
activity. He also testified in support of funding for
revenue sharing. He stated that Cordova had consistently
provi ded the maxi mum al | owabl e contribution to the schools.

2:19:23 PM

BRENT DAVIS, SELF, CORDOVA (via teleconference), urged the
committee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He
shared that he did not own a television, and received their
information fromthe public radio station.

2:20: 05 PM

GRETCHEN CLARKE, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting.
She also testified in support of funding for public health
nursing. She felt that the cuts would result in detrinental
health issues across the state. She remarked that many
radio stations utilized nenbership support, but could not
fully rely on | ocal support.

2:22:20 PM

JOHN MURRAY, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding the Al aska Marine H ghway. He agreed
with the outlook of Vice-Chair Mcciche. He also urged the
committee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He
felt that public radio and television helped to adequately
inform the citizens of the state. He stressed that it was
important for himto have a connection to the state through
public radio. He thanked the commttee for not proposing
cuts to the Board of Fish and Gane.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 24 03/08/16 10:10 A M



Vice-Chair Mcciche requested witten coments from M.
Murray. He shared that he attenpted to reflect the concerns
of Sitka in the current budget. M. Mrray agreed to
provi de that information.

2:25: 44 PM

DENNY  WEATHERS, SELF, CORDOVA (via teleconference),
testified against SB 139 and SB 140. She felt that the
government overspending had caused the current budget
shortfall. She spoke against accessing the Pernmanent Fund,
and al so spoke agai nst capping the Pernmanent Fund D vi dend.
She spoke agai nst additional taxes. She spoke in support of
reduci ng gover nnent fundi ng.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that the budget did not access
the Permanent Fund or new taxes. She stressed that the
bills were the operating and nental health budgets. M.
Weat hers agreed. She felt that public radio, and other
public services were not necessities.

2:29: 36 PM

JOHN ANDERSON, KCHU, VALDEZ (via tel econference), urged the
commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He
felt that public television and radio were essential
services to rural Alaska. He felt that a cornerstone to a
denocracy was a well-inforned public. He remarked that
zeroing out the budget for public broadcasting woul d cause
a |l oss of federal funds.

2:31:23 PM

SHANE KI MBERLIN, SELF, VALDEZ (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting

He stressed that public radio was not owned by the
corporations. He shared that he was a bartender and had
heard many peopl es’ probl ens. He felt t hat | ocal
progranm ng provi ded hope and sol utions to many Al askans.

2:34: 01 PM

GUY BERGSTROM] SELF, VALDEZ (via teleconference), urged the
commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He
stated that he received nost of his news from the |ocal
public radio station in Valdez. He shared that he has a
friend with a serious disability who was able to vol unteer

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 25 03/08/16 10:10 A M



as a disk jockey on the local public radio station in
Val dez.

2:35:48 PM

TERRY SI MMONS, SELF, VALDEZ (via teleconference), urged the
committee to restore funding for public broadcasting. She
shared that she was physically and nentally handi capped.
She remarked that the radio station had worked with her to
beconme a disk jockey on the local public radio station. She
stressed that she had serious denmentia, and the radio
station provided her with essential information to increase
her menory.

2:38:38 PM

ROBERT BERCELI, SELF, CORDOVA (via teleconference), urged
the committee to restore funding for public broadcasting
He shared that the energency broadcasting system provided
i nportant storm warnings such as high tide and blizzards
that could block the road to Thonpson Pass. He shared that
the public radio provided information about terrorist
groups in the world. He also urged the conmrmittee to utilize
a state income tax. He felt that the state incone tax
should never have been elimnated. He stressed that
cormercial fisheries was a mjor |I|ife force of the
community. He al so spoke in support of education funding.

2:41:34 PM

KAREN ALLRED, VOLUNTEER, KCHU, VALDEZ (via tel econference),
urged the commttee to restore funding for public
broadcasting. She stated that she volunteered because of
her dedication to the underserved in her area. She stressed
that information was not available to everyone in the
private sector. She stressed that the state of Al aska had a
popul ation of a mjor urban area across a vast area of
and. She stated that information was the cornerstone to
denocracy. She stressed that nost of the listeners of
public radio stated that it was the lifeline to access to
i nformati on. She encouraged the commttee to reach out to
the constituents who depend on public radio.

2:44: 26 PM

LEE HART, LEVI TATION 49, VALDEZ (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 26 03/08/16 10:10 A M



She stated that Levitation 49 was an organi zation that was
dedicated to the diversification of information about
sports services. She stressed that the local station in
Val dez was the only source of nmedia that covered news and
information. She stressed that the comercial radio could
not provide in depth stories about the community and state.
She shared that the ferry service in Valdez had seen
dramatic cuts, so further cuts to information elimnated
access to the outside world.

2:47: 49 PM

CHRI STINE NIEM, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of the
schedul ed $50 increase to the base student allocation. She
stressed that many schools and famlies were in crisis. She
al so urged the commttee to utilize a state inconme tax. She
shared that there was an incone tax in the 1970s, when she
first noved to Alaska. She shared that there was a
tremendous anount of state funding from rural Al aska. She
appreciated the people in rural Al aska. She stressed that
the urban centers of the state had greater access to
resources, and hoped that the people of rural Al aska would
be considered in the operating budget drafting.

2:49: 35 PM
AT EASE

3:03: 02 PM
RECONVENED

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stated that the commttee would go into
RECESS until 3:45 p. m

3:04: 00 PM
RECESS

3:40: 32 PM
RECONVENED

APUBLI C TESTI MONY: OFF-NET SITES

JOAN KAUTZER, BOARD MEMBER, KFSK, KUPREANCF (via
tel econference), urged the commttee to restore funding for
public br oadcasti ng. She appr eci at ed t he difficult
fi nanci al deci si ons faced by the legislature, and
understood the inevitability of budget cuts. She thought
zer oi ng out fundi ng for public radi o woul d be

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 27 03/08/16 10:10 A M



irresponsi ble. She recounted that KFSK reviewed its budget
at every board neeting, and the budget was very tight
despite robust I|istener support and non-stop fundraising
events. She thought that a hundred percent cut would set
off a bad chain reaction resulting in |oss of federal grant
nmoney that relied on matching funds, and silencing the
|l ocal public radio service on July 1. She discussed the
time it had taken to build up the radio station. She
described public radio as fundanmental infrastructure that
was the sole provider of daily local, regional, and state
news. She discussed other functions of |ocal radio such as
energency information dissemnation. She <called public
radio a lifeline to the outside world. She recounted the
many i nportant pieces of news she had heard from the radio.
She thought that a hundred percent funding cut to public
radio disproportionately discrimnated against Al askans in
the bush. She asked the commttee to reinstate a rationa
| evel of funding for public broadcasting.

3:42: 38 PM

JOHN BOLLING CTY OF CRAIG CRAIG (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for revenue sharing at the
| evel of the governor's proposed budget. He rem nded the
commttee that the governor's budget had included a
reduction in funding for revenue sharing. He stated that
the Cty of Craig understood the need for reduced state
prograns when state revenues declined. He thought that an
abrupt one-third cut to the revenue sharing program was too
great of a reduction for a single year. He thought the
governor's proposal struck a good bal ance between the need
to reduce state spending and giving communities tinme to
adjust to any further increnental cuts. He encouraged the
commttee to maintain the 22 percent enployer match to the
Publ i ¢ Enpl oyees' Retirenent System ( PERS)

3:44:12 PM

CARL BERGER, SELF, BETHEL (via teleconference), urged the
committee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He
stated that the 100 percent cut would have a drastic effect
on the public broadcasting system throughout the state. He
di scussed federal funding that required a state natch, and
noted that additional revenue would be lost if the proposed
cuts went in to effect. He referred to the many individuals
in t he state t hat consistently support ed public
broadcasting. He discussed regions where there was only one

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 28 03/08/16 10:10 A M



radio station. He encouraged the conmittee to reconsider
the cuts to public broadcasting.

3:46: 11 PM

GLEN MARUNDE, NORTHWAY COVMUNI TY, NORTHWAY (via
tel econference), testified in opposition to cuts to the
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities. He
shared that he was born and raised in the Upper Tanana
Vall ey, and was testifying on behalf of the comunity of
Nort hway and the residents of the section of Alaska H ghway
that would be affected by SB 139. He disclosed that he was
a 23-year state enployee with DOI. The Northway comunity
was greatly opposed the proposed cuts that would result in
the closure of the Northway DOT Miintenance Station. His
bi ggest concern was the safety of the travelling public and
the deterioration of the road surface due to no mai ntenance
or del ayed nmi ntenance. He was concerned about the economc
hardship and future opportunities that would be lost as a
result of the proposed cuts. He thought it was time to
utilize the permanent fund for the purpose for which it was
created. He thanked the finance conmittee for listening to
t he concerns of the Northway comunity.

3:47: 25 PM

JULIA PHELAN, SELF, DELTA JUNCTION (via teleconference),
spoke in support of reinstating funds for Best Begi nnings
and the Cooperative Extension Service. She observed
positive outcones in <children as a result of early
chi | dhood education. She referred to studies that indicated
a child s personality was largely determined by the age of
five years. She had net many parents who did not understand
the significance of the early stage of child devel opnent,
and did not know how to engage their children. She
di scussed Inmagination library referenced a study that
reveal ed econom c benefits from every dollar spent on early
chi | dhood education. She spoke in support of funding for
the Cooperative Extension Service. She recounted that her
famly had started a honmestead in the 1970s and had | earned
about many necessary food harvest and preservation skills
from the service. She discussed her current use of the
service, and referenced research done by the service that
was used as a resource by her community. She urged the
conmttee to reinstate funding for the Cooperative
Ext ensi on Service, and for Best Begi nnings.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 29 03/08/16 10:10 A M



3:49:46 PM

JON  ERI CKSON, CTY MANAGER, CITY OF YAKUTAT (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for
revenue sharing. He pointed out that Yakutat was probably
one of the smallest boroughs in population but one of the
| argest boroughs in acreage. He shared that the Gty of
Yakutat had received $390,000 in revenue sharing the
previous year. The proposed $130,000 cut was the sane
anount as the entire adm nistration budget for the borough.
He discussed possible job loss, rising cost of PERS, and
wondered if he would have any full-time enployees. He
t hanked the conmittee and urged them to reinstate funding
to the governor's proposed |evel.

3:51: 24 PM

STEVE ALEXANDER, SELF, ELFIN COVE (via teleconference),
urged the commttee to restore funding for public
broadcasting. He discussed the inportance of public radio
to the conmmunity in EIfin Cove. He stated that he was the
tsunam "go-to guy" in ElIfin Cove, and wanted to nake it
clear that severe weather could inpact comunications. He
di scussed the unreliability of other types of conmunication
and enphasi zed the inportance of radio in the event of an
energency. He acknow edged the extrene budget crisis but
thought that there were sonme things that were very
inportant. He added that he was a Viet Nam veteran and
retired commercial fisher who had lived in Elfin Cove for
many years.

3:53:46 PM

TODD RI CHARDS, SELF, ELFIN COVE (via tel econference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting
He supported funding public radio at the governor's
proposed |evel. He thought that the value of dollars spent
on public broadcasting outweighed the benefit of savings
that woul d be gained fromcutting the service.

3:55:37 PM

MARGARET FRI EDENAUER, SELF, HAINES (via teleconference),
urged the commttee to restore funding for public
br oadcast i ng. She stressed that public broadcasting
provided her a job, so she could remain in the conmunity
and state. She reiterated that cutting funding for services

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 30 03/08/16 10:10 A M



resulted in cutting jobs in the state and conmmunities. She
noted that the |awrakers were still discussing ways to cut
spendi ng rather than discussing ways to pay for the budget.
She felt that revenue producing |egislation was inportant.

3:57:11 PM

ANNE HANSSEN, SELF, HAINES (via teleconference), urged the
commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting. She
hi ghlighted the inportance of the local radio station in
Hai nes. She relayed that the public radio in Haines (KNHS)
had worked hard in the recent years to raise nobney to
enhance the | ocal news.

3:58: 06 PM

JOHN LAMONT, SELF, ALAKANUK (via teleconference), urged the
conmmittee to restore funding for public broadcasting and
early childhood education. He also supported alternate
forms of revenue for the state. He was willing to pay an
income tax, and thought that every citizen should pay for
the services in the state. He referred to teachers being
hired from out of state, and felt that there should be a
focus on enploying teachers frominside the sate. He spoke
in support of a state inconme tax. He thought cuts needed to
be made on high administrative positions, and thought many
state enployees nmade nore noney than the governor. He
mentioned federal funds that were |everaged by state
funding for state funding would be lost as a result of the
proposed budget cuts.

4:01:35 PM

ALBERT NI GNEULOOK, SELF, SHI SHVAREF (via teleconference),
urged support of funding for senior services. He nentioned
the heating assistance program and senior benefits. He
highlighted the inportance of senior benefits to many
elders in the state. He also urged the comrittee to restore
funding for public broadcasting.

4:03:15 PM
ELSI E VENT, HUSLI A CTY COUNCI L, HUSLI A (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for

revenue sharing. She stressed the inportance of the fund as
alifeline to provide services in Huslia.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 31 03/08/16 10:10 A M



4:03: 50 PM

JAMES SQUYRES, SELF, RURAL DELTANA (via teleconference),
t hought there should be additional cuts to the budget. He
spoke against the governor's proposed state incone tax and
cap of the permanent fund. He shared that he had observed
testimony in the Senate State Affairs related to continued
budget cuts. He endorsed the judicious use of the earnings
reserve, and the power of the mgjority under the caucus
rules to lower the overall budget to $4.5 billion or |ower
in the current year. He felt that there should be an
exam nation of funding sources |ike the PCE and higher
education fund. He felt that the legislature did not set a
precedent. He called the governor's plan "diabolical." He
shared some thoughts about the inflation proofing of the
Permanent Fund. He felt that the l|egislature should reduce
the size of governnent to the 2006 | evel

Co-Chair Kelly announced that the budget was at 2003
| evel s.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked if M. Squyres had nentioned a $4.5
billion for the current year. M. Squyres replied in the
affirmative. He clarified that there should be a $4.5
billion budget before the PCE or higher education funds
wer e maneuver ed.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked if M. Squyres supported the use of
the earnings reserve. M. Squyres replied in the
affirmati ve.

4:06: 38 PM

FRED PATTERSON, SELF, CH NIAK (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting
He stated that public radio was critical to his comunity,
because they had limted internet at cell phone service.

Co-Chair Kelly handed the gavel to Co-Chair MacKi nnon.

4:07:18 PM

JEFF W DDOWS, SELF, YAKUTAT (via tel econference), urged the
commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He
di scussed the inaccessibility of his area, and shared that
many people did not have internet or phone access. He
t hought public radio was inportant for enmergency services.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 32 03/08/16 10:10 A M



4:08:35 PM

CHRIS WDDOWA5, SELF, YAKUTAT (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting

She shared that the community in Yakutat was struggling
financially. She furthered that there were not resources to
fill the nonetary gap that would be left by the cuts in
state funding. She discussed federal matching funds that
woul d be lost if funding was cut. She thanked the conmmttee
for their efforts.

4:09:59 PM

MARY AMAKTO K, SELF, ELIM (via teleconference), testified
in support of funding for revenue sharing. She supported
funding revenue sharing as proposed in the governor's
budget. She discussed nunicipal expenses for Eim and
stressed that the revenue sharing enhanced Elims ability
to provide essential services to the community. She thanked
the commttee for the work they had done.

4:11:31 PM
AT EASE

4:29:17 PM
RECONVENED

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon handed the gavel back to Co-Chair Kelly.

4:29:17 PM

DEBORAH POTTER, SELF, SKAGMY (via teleconference), urged
the commttee to restore funding for public broadcasting.
She discussed the nmany isolated rural communities in the
state, and thought that they were dependent upon public
radio to get tinely and inportant infornmation. She shared
that her comunity depended on the radio for potential
lifesaving information such as weather alerts, r oad
closures, and last mnute changes to the ferry schedul e.
She stressed that there was no other way for the comunity
to receive the inportant information in a tinmely nmanner.
She thought that the cuts to public broadcasting would
affect many vul nerable people. She asked that cuts to
public radio would not exceed the level proposed by the
gover nor.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 33 03/08/16 10:10 A M



4:31:37 PM

JENNI FER THUSS, SELF, SKAGMY (via teleconference), urged
the committee to restore funding for public broadcasting
She thought public radio was vital to small comunities of
Hai nes, Skagway, and Kl ukwan. She considered it the fastest
way for the conmmunity to share national, state, and |oca
information in real tine. She echoed the remarked of M.
Potter.

4:32:41 PM
AT EASE

4:56: 01 PM
RECONVENED

MELANI E LESH, SELF, GUSTAVUS (via teleconference), urged
the committee to restore funding for public broadcasting at
the level proposed by the governor. She thought public
broadcasting to critical for individuals in rural Al aska.
She relayed that many conmunities did not have access to
internet or phone service, and relied on the information
provided by public radio. She thought that public
broadcasti ng connected the state.

4:58: 28 PM

DUSTI N CRANEY, SELF, HAINES (via teleconference), testified
in support of funding the Al aska Marine H ghway. He rel ayed
that he was a business owner, and relied on the ferry
service. The current marine highway schedul e was nmaking his
busi ness operations difficult. He was unsure that a planned
road woul d happen in the near future, and considered pl anes
to be an wuncertain node of transport. He wurged the
committee to restore funding for public broadcasting. He
was a regular Ilistener to local radio, and discussed
federal matching funds that would be lost if the proposed
cuts were to happen. He also spoke in support of a cap to
t he Permanent Fund D vi dend.

5:01:34 PM
AT EASE

5:33:51 PM
RECONVENED

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 34 03/08/16 10:10 A M



Co-Chair Kelly relayed that public testinmony had concl uded
for the day. He communicated that the commttee woul d neet
the foll owm ng norning.

SB 139 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 140 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
5:34:11 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 5:34 p.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 35 03/08/16 10:10 A M



